
Miami-Dade County Charter Review Task Force Meeting 
Thursday, May 17, 2012 

Miami-Dade County Main Library, Auditorium 
101 West Flagler Street 

9:00 a.m. 
 

• Approval of Minutes 
o April 19, 2012 Task Force Meeting 
o May 7, 2012 Public Hearing  
o May 8, 2012 Public Hearing 
o May 9, 2012 Public Hearing 
o May 10, 2012 Public Hearing 
o May 14, 2012 Public Hearing 

 
• Chairman’s Items 

o Next Meeting Dates – Proposed May 23, May 30, and June 6 
o Proposed Timeline for the Charter Review Task Force 
o Prohibido Callarse Show Invitation (WQBA) 
o Other business 

 
• County Attorney’s Reports 

o Recommended Technical Amendments to Charter 
o Term Limits Discussion 
 

• Staff Reports/Presentations 
o Procurement Presentation 
o Incorporation/Annexation Presentation 

o 2011 Adopted Millage Rates  
o Areas of Interest Tally 
o Blog Update 
o Follow-up CRTF requests and other business (Translations, 

Independent Review Panel, Commissioner Moss Item, etc.) 
 

 



 
 

Minutes 



MIAMI-DADE CHARTER REVIEW TASK FORCE 
CLERK’S SUMMARY AND OFFICIAL MINUTES OF MEETING 

APRIL 19, 2012 
 
 

Page 1 of 11                         Miami-Dade Charter Review Task Force                   April 19, 2012 
Clerk’s Summary and Official Minutes of Meeting 

The Miami-Dade Charter Review Task Force (the Task Force) convened its first meeting at the 
Miami-Dade Public Library Auditorium, 101 West Flagler Street, Miami, Florida, at 10:00 a.m.  
There being present upon roll call members:  Ms. Yolanda Aguilar, Mr. Joe Arriola, Mayor Juan 
Carlos Bermudez, Mr. Armando Bucelo, Senator Rene Garcia, City of Hialeah Councilwoman 
Isis Garcia-Martinez and Councilman Luis Gonzalez, Mayor Evelyn Langlieb Greer, 
Representative John Patrick Julien, Mr. Carlos Manrique, Mr. Terry Murphy, Mr. Hans Ottinot, 
Mr. Lawrence Percival, Reverend Dr. Walter Richardson, Mr. Donald Slesnick, Professor H. T. 
Smith, and Representative Carlos Trujillo (Mr. Jeffrey Bercow was late and Ms. Pamela Perry 
was absent). 
 
In addition to the members of the Task Force, the following elected officials and staff members 
were present: Mayor Carlos Gimenez, Clerk of Courts Harvey Ruvin, Assistant County 
Attorneys Oren Rosenthal and Jess McCarty, Ms. Inson Kim, Ms. Lorna Mejia, and Deputy 
Clerk Flora Real. 
 
Ms. Inson Kim, Director of Policy & Legislation, Office of the Mayor, called the meeting to 
order at approximately 10:11 a.m.  She welcomed Task Force members and all others present.  
 
Members of the Task Force convened in a moment of silence, followed by the Pledge of 
Allegiance. 
 
Ms. Kim introduced Harvey Ruvin, Clerk, Miami-Dade County Circuit and County Courts, 
whom she noted would administer the Oath of Office for the newly appointed Task Force 
members immediately after they completed the Oath of Office Form. 
 
Upon submittal of all Oath of Office forms, Clerk Ruvin congratulated each of the Task Force 
members on their appointment, noting Commissioner Bruno Barreiro recently appointed Mr. 
Jeffrey Bercow, who would join the meeting shortly.  He said he believed the membership 
comprised a wealth of knowledge and expertise.   
 
Upon concluding his remarks, Clerk Ruvin administered the Oath of Office to all Task Force 
members present.  He said he fully supported this process and would be available to assist in any 
way possible. 
 
Ms. Kim introduced Miami-Dade Mayor Carlos Gimenez, noting the Mayor would present the 
opening remarks. 
 
WELCOME 
 
Mayor Carlos Gimenez expressed appreciation to all Task Force members for their participation. 
He noted the Home Rule Charter (the Charter) was a very important document written in the 
1950s, and was considered the County’s constitution.  He said he was hopeful that Task Force 
members would be provided with the historical background on the Charter and its creators.  The 
Mayor noted he participated on the last Charter Review Task Force, which forwarded several 



Page 2 of 11                         Miami-Dade Charter Review Task Force                   April 19, 2012 
Clerk’s Summary and Official Minutes of Meeting 

 

recommendations to the Board of County Commissioners.  He stated, although some of those 
recommendations were placed in the ballot for approval by the voters, most of them were not. 
 
Mayor Gimenez said the Charter Review process was an important, viable exercise for the 
community; and he was hopeful that the talented individuals in this group would engage in the 
same type of honest, open discussions as the members of the last Task Force did in 2007.  He 
urged them to open their hearts and minds during the deliberation process, and engage in 
productive, comprehensive dialogue to move this County forward within the limited timeframe 
allowed for this process. He reassured Task Force members that he and members of the 
Administration would be available to assist.  He wished Task Force members success in this 
endeavor.   
 
INTRODUCTION OF TASK FORCE MEMBERS AND STAFF 
 
Following a formal introduction of each of the Task Force members and staff, Assistant County 
Attorney Oren Rosenthal provided an overview of the Government in the Sunshine (Sunshine) 
Law. 
 
OVERVIEW OF FLORIDA’S SUNSHINE LAW, PUBLIC RECORDS, AND CONFLICT 
OF INTEREST 
 
Assistant County Attorney Oren Rosenthal explained the Florida’s Sunshine, public records, and 
Conflict of Interest laws and applicability of these laws to the Task Force.  He stated that, under 
the provisions of the Sunshine Law, this Task Force was deemed an “agency” of the Board of 
County Commissioners, and, as such, all proceedings would be governed by the Sunshine Law 
and provisions of the resolution creating the Charter Review Task Force.  Mr. Rosenthal 
explained that the Task Force was also subject to Public Records Law.   
 
The Sunshine Law subjected any conversations on issues discussed by members of this body to 
the provisions of the Sunshine and Public Records laws, which required those discussions to be 
publicly advertised and held in a public forum.  He clarified the Sunshine Law was applicable to 
meetings held between two or more Task Force members as well as any emails among Task 
Force members and members of the County Commission as a whole. Written communications to 
staff were not subject to the Sunshine Law, the attorney noted.  He recommended that any 
discussion regarding the Charter and related issues be held within the constraint of this body to 
ensure compliance.  
 
Assistant County Attorney Rosenthal advised that the Public Records Law was applicable to any 
documents created by the members of the Task Force and such documents must be maintained in 
accordance to that law. He suggested Ms. Kim maintain these records on behalf of the Task 
Force members; and that copies of all documents and any other correspondence including emails 
be forwarded to her.  He noted he would be available and that Task Force members could 
individually contact him with any questions or concerns regarding the requirements of the laws 
governing communications. Assistant County Attorney Rosenthal clarified that individual 
communication with staff members from the Mayor’s Office or the County Attorney’s Office 
was not subject to the Sunshine Law.



Page 3 of 11                         Miami-Dade Charter Review Task Force                   April 19, 2012 
Clerk’s Summary and Official Minutes of Meeting 

 

OVERVIEW OF RESOLUTION NO. R-253-12 CREATING THE CHARTER REVIEW 
TASK FORCE 
 
Assistant County Attorney Oren Rosenthal advised that Resolution Number R-253-12 was 
enacted by the Board of County Commissioners to create this Task Force and to meet its 
obligations under the provisions of Section 9.08 of the Miami-Dade County Home Rule Charter 
(the Charter).  Section 9.08 required that the Board of County Commissioners (BCC) convene at 
least once in every five years to review the Charter and to determine the need for changes. The 
BCC created this body and delegated its authority to this group to review the Charter and 
develop recommendations to revise or amend the Charter for the BCC to review and consider.   
 
Assistant County Attorney Rosenthal advised the BCC had specifically made the following 
requests for this Task Force: 
 

1. that the Miami-Dade County Home Rule Charter be reviewed in its entirety; 
2. that a final report be prepared and submitted to the BCC setting forth, in writing, 

any proposed amendments or revisions to the Charter; 
3. that a study of the final report submitted by the last Charter Review Task Force be 

conducted during this review process; 
4. that all proposed Charter amendments submitted to the voters since the last Charter 

Review Task Force issued its recommendations be studied; 
5. that knowledgeable members of the community be invited to appear, make 

recommendations, and assist in understanding some of the issues during the 
deliberation process; 

6. that public hearings and meetings be conducted at various locations throughout the 
County to allow the entire community to participate and provide input; and  

7. that the information gathered from the community outreach efforts shall be 
considered in deliberating and in preparing the final report. 

 
Assistant County Attorney Rosenthal advised that Resolution R-253-12 also established a 
deadline for this Task Force to complete deliberations and present its final report and 
recommendations for the BCC to consider at its July 17, 2012, meeting. He noted one of the 
recommendations adopted from the previous Task Force was that all Charter amendments must 
be placed on the November election ballot, and July 17th would be the last possible meeting for 
the BCC to consider the final report and still have enough time to place Task Force 
recommendations on the November ballot.  
 
Assistant County Attorney Rosenthal pointed out that this resolution expressed the Board’s intent 
to place any recommendations or proposed amendments approved by a two-third majority of the 
Task Force directly on the ballot at the next available Countywide election.  
 
Upon concluding his presentation, Assistant County Attorney Rosenthal opened the floor for 
questions and concerns from Task Force members. 
 



Page 4 of 11                         Miami-Dade Charter Review Task Force                   April 19, 2012 
Clerk’s Summary and Official Minutes of Meeting 

 

In response to Mr. Bucelo’s question, Assistant County Attorney Rosenthal said the County 
Commission intended to place any recommendation(s) approved by a two-third majority or 14 
votes of the Task Force on the ballot. 
 
Mr. Percival said he believed the word “should” in the resolution diluted the intent of the original 
legislation requiring that recommendations approved by a two-third majority be directly placed 
on the ballot. He expressed concern that the language in this resolution was ambiguous, and he 
believed it would be very offensive if the Commission failed to act on the final recommendations 
of this Task Force. He wanted some assurance that the County Commission would act on them. 
 
Assistant County Attorney Rosenthal advised the Home Rule Charter provided two mechanisms 
for amendments, which could be accomplished either by initiatory petition of the electorate or by 
the County Commission placing proposed amendments on the ballot. He explained the intent of 
the language contained in the Charter relating to Charter amendments, and noted the County 
Commission was not obligated to amend the Charter.  He stated the resolution only expresses the 
Commission’s intent to place the amendments on the ballot.  
 
Mayor Greer pointed out the 2008 Final Report distributed to Task Force members was missing 
some pages.  She requested a complete copy of this report. 
 
Assistant County Attorney Rosenthal noted a complete copy would be disseminated to all Task 
Force members because additional items needed to be included. 
 
Professor H.T. Smith expressed his appreciation to Mr. Rosenthal for the explanation regarding 
the deadline for this Task Force to submit its final report.  He asked the County Attorney whether 
the legislation would prevent Task Force members from forwarding its proposed 
recommendations directly to the electorate in the event the final report was not completed by the 
deadline. 
  
Assistant County Attorney Rosenthal advised that the resolution required that the final report of 
the Task Force be submitted by July 17, 2012; however, Task Force members could request that 
the County Commission amend this resolution to extend the deadline to complete the Charter 
Review process, and that the Commission consider placing the proposed recommendations on 
the ballot for the 2014 election.  He explained that the language in the resolution made the tenure 
of this Task Force go beyond the deadline for the final report, which allowed for an extension.   
 
Assistant County Attorney Rosenthal recommended the Task Force members consider moving a 
request that the BCC amend resolution R-253-12 to provide that an interim report be submitted 
by the 2012 election deadline and a second (final) report be submitted for placement on the 2014 
election ballot.  He also recommended the Charter Review process not exceed 365 days or Task 
Force members may be subject to existing County ordinances governing financial disclosure 
requirements and other legislation that prohibit individuals from serving on two boards 
concurrently. 



Page 5 of 11                         Miami-Dade Charter Review Task Force                   April 19, 2012 
Clerk’s Summary and Official Minutes of Meeting 

 

In response to Mr. Slesnick’s question, Assistant County Attorney Rosenthal clarified that the 
intent of this resolution was to sunset this Task Force in 365 days. He urged Task Force members 
to ensure that this process did not exceed the 365th day timeframe or it would trigger the 
legislation previously mentioned. 
 
Senator Rene Garcia suggested the final report of the Task Force be submitted to the County 
Commission at least two weeks before the prescribed July 17th  timeframe to ensure that 
commissioners had sufficient time to thoroughly review the proposed recommendations.  
 
Mayor Greer suggested that Assistant County Attorney Rosenthal establish a timeline to 
complete the Charter Review process. 
 
Senator Garcia concurred with Mayor Greer’s suggestions. 
 
In response to Mr. Slesnick’s question regarding the process, Assistant County Attorney 
Rosenthal explained the process for presenting the final report.  Upon completing the Charter 
Review process and deliberations, the Task Force would instruct the County Attorney’s Office to 
prepare any necessary resolutions, which would outline any proposed revisions/amendments to 
the Charter, for the County Commission’s consideration, the attorney noted. He further advised, 
following another question from Mr. Slesnick, that the recommendations of the Task Force 
would be prepared in the form of resolutions, which would not be subject to the requirements for 
first and second readings.  
 
Mr. Ottinot questioned the timeframe prescribed for the last Charter Review process.  
 
Assistant County Attorney Rosenthal advised the last process had different legislative 
constraints. He noted an amendment was proposed by Commissioner Moss, which was 
subsequently withdrawn at the Committee level; and a request was made that this Task Force 
review that proposal, which Mr. Rosenthal advised would be disseminated to Task Force 
members for review during this process. 
 
OVERVIEW OF THE HOME RULE AMENDMENT AND MIAMI-DADE COUNTY 
CHARTER  
 
Assistant County Attorney Oren Rosenthal provided an overview of the Home Rule Charter in its 
entirety, noting Miami-Dade County was unique from all other counties throughout the State of 
Florida because it was home rule chartered.  Although, several other counties in the State were 
chartered counties, Miami-Dade County was the only county with a home rule amendment to the 
Florida Sate Constitution. He explained the home rule amendment, and how the Charter 
distinguished Miami-Dade from other chartered counties and provided examples of some of the 
provisions contained in the Home Rule Charter Amendment. 
 
Assistant County Attorney Rosenthal also provided an overview of the Citizens’ Bill of Rights 
and each of the articles contained in the Charter. 



Page 6 of 11                         Miami-Dade Charter Review Task Force                   April 19, 2012 
Clerk’s Summary and Official Minutes of Meeting 

 

In response to Mr. Slesnick’s question regarding whether the County Attorney’s Office would 
provide recommendations on technical changes, Assistant County Attorney Rosenthal noted he 
would be happy to prepare such recommendations; however, the County Attorney’s Office had 
not been asked to prepare recommendations on technical changes by any other Task Force. 
 
Mr. Slesnick suggested a study of technical amendments be conducted concurrently with the 
other studies. 
 
In response to Mr. Percival’s question regarding the Mayor’s authority to place proposed Charter 
amendments on the ballot or to sponsor legislation amending the Charter, Assistant County 
Attorney Rosenthal advised the Mayor could only recommend amendments through the County 
Commission. 
 
Hearing no other questions or comments, Assistant County Attorney Rosenthal advised that he 
along with Assistant County Attorneys Cynthia Johnson-Stacks and Jess McCarty would be the 
main contact persons in the County Attorney’s Office for all Charter related questions/concerns; 
and he noted Task Force members should feel free to contact them, if necessary. 
 
Ms. Inson Kim noted the Clerk of the Board Division received a letter from Task Force member, 
Ms. Pamela Perry, explaining that she was unable to attend today’s meeting and why. 
 
Upon conclusion of the foregoing discussion, the Task Force proceeded to select a chair. 
 
COMMENTS/DISCUSSION BY TASK FORCE MEMBERS  
 

 Charter Review Task Force Chair 
 
It was moved by Mayor Evelyn Greer that the Task Force elect Professor H.T. Smith to Chair the 
2012 Charter Review Task Force.  This motion was seconded by Mr. Bercow, and Task Force 
members opened the floor for discussion. 
 
Professor Smith recommended the Task Force refrain from electing a Chairperson until all 
members were present.  He emphasized the importance for all members to have an opportunity to 
participate in the selection of the chairperson, and suggested Task Force members appoint a 
member to coordinate the process until the chairperson was elected. 
 
Following further discussion regarding this matter, Professor Smith noted he sincerely 
appreciated being nominated by his colleagues; but he would be unable to Chair the Task Force. 
 
It was moved by Representative Trujillo that the Task Force elect Senator Rene Garcia to Chair 
the 2012 Charter Review Task Force.  This motion was seconded by Mr. Manrique, and Task 
Force members opened the floor for discussion. 
 
Representative Trujillo noted the importance for Task Force members to select a chair with a 
recognizable image to better facilitate the coordination of meetings, communications, and 
outreach efforts.   



Page 7 of 11                         Miami-Dade Charter Review Task Force                   April 19, 2012 
Clerk’s Summary and Official Minutes of Meeting 

 

Mr. Manrique pointed out that Task Force members needed to select a chair and expedite the 
review process considering the limited timeframe to complete their charge. 
 
Senator Garcia concurred with the statements made by Mr. Manrique, noting the deadline for the 
final report should be changed to July 1, 2012.  He noted the importance of expediting the 
process and for all Task Force members to be committed to the expedited process to ensure the 
community outreach effort was completed. 
 
Senator Garcia said he would accept the nomination, and would be glad to serve as Chair of the 
Task Force and conduct the community outreach efforts. 
 
Hearing no other questions or comments, Task Force members proceeded to vote on the 
foregoing motion to elect Senator Garcia as Chair of the 2012 Charter Review Task Force, as 
moved by Representative Trujillo and seconded by Mr. Manrique. This motion, upon being put 
to a vote, passed by a unanimous vote of those members present (Professor Smith abstained from 
voting). 
 
Professor Smith noted, for the record, that although he supported the motion to elect Senator 
Garcia as Chair, he abstained from voting because he believed all Task Force members should 
have participated in the vote. He asked that the minutes reflect that Task Force members voted 
unanimously to elect Senator Garcia as Chair. 
 
In response to Mr. Ottinot’s question regarding the selection of a Vice Chair, Assistant County 
Attorney Rosenthal noted the resolution governing this Task Force only required that Task Force 
members vote to elect a chair; and they had complete discretion to either elect a Vice 
Chairperson or allow the newly elected Chairman to appoint that individual. 
 
Mayor Greer recommended Task Force members elect Professor H. T. Smith to serve as Vice 
Chair. 
 
It was then moved by Professor Smith that Task Force members elect Mayor Juan Carlos 
Bermudez to serve as Vice Chair.  This motion was seconded by Representative Trujillo, and the 
members opened the floor for discussion. 
 
Dr. Richardson noted the importance for this Task Force to be sensitive to issues of diversity, 
noting he was concerned that if the Chair and Vice Chair of the Task Force were of the same 
ethnic background, it could send the wrong message to the community. He suggested the Task 
Force members ensure that its leadership was reflective of this diverse community and sends a 
positive message to the community by electing either a woman or non-Hispanic member to serve 
as Vice Chair.   
 
Mayor Bermudez noted he also appreciated being nominated by his colleagues, but he would be 
unable to accept.  He said he agreed with Dr. Richardson that the leadership of the Task Force 
needed to be reflective of this diverse community.



Page 8 of 11                         Miami-Dade Charter Review Task Force                   April 19, 2012 
Clerk’s Summary and Official Minutes of Meeting 

 

Mr. Arriola recommended the Task Force elect Mayor Evelyn Greer to serve as Vice Chair.  
 
Mayor Greer noted she would recommend that Dr. Richardson be elected to serve as Vice Chair. 
 
Professor Smith noted he would support Mr. Arriola’s recommendation that the Task Force elect 
Mayor Greer. 
 
It was moved by Mr. Arriola that the Task Force elect Mayor Evelyn Greer to serve as Vice 
Chair of the 2012 Charter Review Task Force.  This motion was seconded by Chairman Garcia, 
and upon being put to a vote, passed by a unanimous vote of those members present. 
 
Upon conclusion of the foregoing discussion, Chairman Garcia assumed the Chair and called the 
next item on today’s agenda.  
 

 Meeting Schedule 
 
Chairman Garcia advised the first order of business was to schedule a calendar of meeting dates 
for future Charter Review Task Force (CRTF) meetings. He suggested that these meetings be 
scheduled every two weeks. 
 
Assistant County Attorney Rosenthal noted the dates for community outreach meetings should 
be included in the proposed calendar as well.  
 
Councilwoman Isis Garcia-Martinez suggested that two Task Force meetings be scheduled 
without a timeframe to allow the time necessary for its deliberations. 
 
Mayor Greer and Mr. Arriola noted they concurred with Councilwoman Garcia-Martinez, and 
the following recommendations were offered by Mayor Greer: 
 

1. that community outreach meetings be scheduled before the CRTF meetings to obtain 
the public input and feedback; 

2. that the community outreach meetings be scheduled before the end of the school year 
and after FCAT; 

3. that online meetings be set up for those individuals unable to physically attend the 
public meetings; 

4. that Chairman Garcia ask the Task Force members the areas of interest to be studied; 
5. that the Task Force be divided into subgroups to study those areas of interest; 
6. that all outreach efforts be conducted first within the first two weeks of the review 

process and that online interactive feedback be established; 
7. that the community be divided into regional areas;  
8. that two of the Task Force meetings be scheduled without a timeframe to be able to 

complete the deliberation process;  
9. that additional public meetings be scheduled after the deliberation process was 

completed if that was the will of the Task Force; 



Page 9 of 11                         Miami-Dade Charter Review Task Force                   April 19, 2012 
Clerk’s Summary and Official Minutes of Meeting 

 

10. that the Chair allow 30 days after the review process was completed to obtain feedback 
and lobby; and  

11. that Task Force members not be required to attend all meetings. 
 
Representative Trujillo recommended that the County be divided into regional areas and that 
community outreach meetings be scheduled in each of those regions. 
 
Ms. Kim noted a CRTF Website had been created with a dedicated email address, and this page 
was monitored by her staff. 
 
Mr. Manrique suggested that the Website be translated into other languages to satisfy the needs 
of the various ethnic groups in the community. 
 
Following a brief discussion regarding the need to have the Website translated into other 
languages, Task Force members agreed that the Website would be translated into the 
predominant languages spoken by the local residents. 
 
Regarding the proposal to schedule community public hearings by regions, Task Force members 
agreed to divide the County into the following regions:  northwest, northeast, southwest, and 
southeast, and to schedule community outreach meetings in each of those areas. Task Force 
members also agreed that an email address would be created for local residents who were unable 
to attend the community outreach meetings to post input and feedback. 
 
Following a discussion regarding where the community outreach meetings would be held, it was 
moved by Mayor Greer that these meetings be scheduled at the South Dade Government Center; 
the Miami-Dade Community College Wolfson Campus as well as the North Campus and the 
Kendall Campus; and the Goodwill site in Hialeah or the Hialeah Senior High School 
Auditorium. This motion was seconded by Chairman Garcia, and upon being put to a vote, 
passed by a vote of 19-0. 
 
Chairman Garcia asked Task Force members to grant him discretion to change the meeting 
locations based on availability, if necessary.                                                                                                 
 
Members of the Task Force pointed out that areas within the northeast and Miami Beach were 
not included in the regions for community outreach meetings.  
 
Mayor Greer suggested that all community outreach meetings be scheduled consecutively or 
staggered between May 7 and May 13, 2012, depending on the availability of the subject 
facilities. 
 
Following a brief discussion regarding how the meetings would be scheduled, the Task Force 
Members agreed to the following: 
 

1. that the length of meetings be limited to four hours; 



Page 10 of 11                         Miami-Dade Charter Review Task Force                   April 19, 2012 
Clerk’s Summary and Official Minutes of Meeting 

 

2. that testimony/comments by speakers be limited to three minutes per speaker; 
and that any speaker needing to exceed the three minute limit be required to 
submit a request in writing; and 

3. that all meetings begin at 5:30 p.m. 
 
Mr. Bercow suggested staff be given authority to identify alternative facilities if those facilities 
identified by the Task Force were unavailable. He noted he would not support the 
recommendation that the meetings be staggered since all Task Force members had a duty to be 
present at those meetings. He expressed concern that smaller meetings would be ineffective. 
 
Discussion ensued regarding the meeting dates and the availability of some Task Force members 
on certain dates due to conflicting business commitments. 
 
In response to Mr. Arriola’s request, Assistant County Attorney Rosenthal advised either he or 
members of the Administration would schedule the meeting dates, times, and locations; and the 
calendar would be provided to Task Force members. 
 
Mayor Greer noted inviting experts and other knowledgeable community residents to provide 
expertise and provide historical information was part of the process, goals, and mission of the 
Task Force. She suggested these individuals be invited to appear before the Task Force an hour 
earlier than the general public. 
 
Representative Trujillo noted he did not support Mayor Greer’s two-tier approach to allow those 
individuals perceived as knowledgeable to make presentations before the general public. 
 
Mr. Slesnick suggested those persons could be invited to attend the meeting and to make 
presentations, without being given preference to speak over the general public. 
 
Following a brief discussion, regarding this matter, Professor Smith suggested these individuals 
be scheduled to appear before the Task Force at a time certain during discussion on the historical 
background of the Charter or at the beginning of the process. 
 
In response to Mr. Murphy’s question regarding whether the sender’s personal information 
would be available in emails posted on the Website, Ms. Kim explained that the Website could 
be designed to capture personal information; however, it was currently designed to send and 
receive email only. 
 
Areas of Study 
 

 Other Discussion Items 
 
Task Force members did not discuss this item. 
 
 



Page 11 of 11                         Miami-Dade Charter Review Task Force                   April 19, 2012 
Clerk’s Summary and Official Minutes of Meeting 

 

OTHER 
 
Professor H. T. Smith reiterated his position regarding the selection of the Chairman and asked 
that it be captured as part of the official record. On behalf of All Task Force members, he closed 
by commending Ms. Kim and her staff for coordinating today’s meeting; and he noted Task 
Force members looked forward to working with the members of the Mayor’s Office, Mr. 
Rosenthal, and other members of the County Attorney’s Office. He said staff should expect to 
work really hard during this process. 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
 
There being no further business to come before the Miami-Dade Charter Review Task Force, the 
meeting was adjourned at 10:55 a.m. 
 
 
 
 
                                                                      ___________________________________________ 
                                                                      Chairman Rene Garcia  
                                                                      Miami-Dade Charter Review Task Force 
 
 
 
 







CLERKS SUMMARY AND OFFICIAL MINUTES 
CHARTER REVIEW TASK FORCE PUBLIC HEARING MEETING 

May 7, 2012 
 

The Charter Review Task Force (CRTF) convened on May 7, 2012, at 5:30 p.m. in the Miami 
Art Museum, 101 West Flagler Street, Miami, Florida. The following members were present: 
Vice Chairwoman Honorable Evelyn Langlieb Greer, and Task Force members Ms. Yolanda 
Aguilar, Representative John Patrick Julien, Mr. Carlos Manrique, Mr. Terry Murphy, Mr. Hans 
Ottinot, Mr. Lawrence Percival, Ms. Pamela Perry, Dr. Walter T. Richardson, Mr. Don Slesnick, 
Professor H.T. Smith, Representative Carlos Trujillo (Senator Rene Garcia, Mr. Joe Arriola, 
Mayor JC Bermudez, Mr. Armando J. Bucelo Jr., Esq., the Honorable Luis Gonzalez, and the 
Honorable Isis Garcia-Martinez were absent). 
 
In addition to the Chairman and members of the Task Force, the following staff members were 
present: Assistant County Attorney Oren Rosenthal, Ms. Inson Kim, Director, Policy and 
Legislative Affairs, Mayor’s Office; and Deputy Clerk Karen Harrison. 
 

• Welcome and Introduction 
 
Vice Chairwoman Greer called the meeting to order at 5:35 p.m., and welcomed members of the 
Task Force as well as all persons present.  She explained that the purpose of this meeting was to 
invite the public to make recommendations for the Charter amendments.   
 
Vice Chairwoman Greer opened the public hearing and called for persons wishing to be heard.   
 

• Public Hearing 
 
Ms. Esperanza Reynolds, 8465 Menteith Terrace, Miami Lakes, appeared before the Task Force. 
She read, into the record, her concerns regarding Section A of the Citizen’s Bill of Rights, which 
indicates this government was created to protect the governed.  She questioned why County 
Commissioners insisted on serving more than a two four-year term.  Ms. Reynolds suggested that 
ballot questions involving proposed Charter amendments be written in a manner that the voters 
could easily comprehend. She also suggested that the membership of the Task Force include 
private citizens as well as professionals, and noted she was hopeful that final recommendations 
of this Task Force were clear, and worded in a way that was easily understandable to the voters.  
In conclusion, she said she believed that the voters were disenfranchised.   
 
Hearing no other persons wishing to appear, Vice Chairwoman Greer asked Task Force members 
to consider a date(s) for the next CRTF meeting, noting the importance of scheduling this 
meeting as soon as possible.   
 
Following comments by Ms. Kim regarding the most suitable date(s) for the next meeting, Vice 
Chairwoman Greer noted based on the consensus of Task Force members, the next CRTF 
meeting would be scheduled on Thursday, May 17, 2012 at 9:00 a.m. 
 

Clerk’s Summary and Official Minutes                                    Page 1 of 6 
Charter Review Task Force Meeting 

May 7, 2012 



Mr. Don Slesnick concurred with Mr. Lawrence Percival’s recommendation that members of the 
Task Force should be prepared to stay longer at the upcoming meetings in order to accomplish 
more and to limit the number of meetings. 
 
In response to Mr. Carlos Manrique’s concerns regarding whether Task Force meetings were 
properly and/or sufficiently advertised, Ms. Kim explained that all meetings were advertised in 
The Miami Today Newspaper, on CBS Television Station, Channel 4, and were posted on the 
County’s Website at miamidade.gov, which included an announcement of today’s meeting in 
addition to media press releases. 
 
Discussion ensued among the members of the Task Force regarding the feasibility of broadening 
the media outlets for future meetings and providing advertisements in Spanish and Creole to 
increase public participation and involvement in this process. 
 
Ms. Kim assured the members of the Task Force that more effort would be made to reach out to 
the residents of this community. 
 
Task Force members discussed the feasibility of scheduling meetings within the various 
communities to increase public participation and working with the mayors to post on their 
respective municipalities’ Websites and in published newsletters.   
 
Following further discussion, Mr. Don Slesnick noted he opposed scheduling a Task Force 
meeting on a Friday night.   
 
It was moved by Mr. Slesnick that the May 11, 2012 CRTF meeting be rescheduled to Monday, 
May 14, 2012 at 5:30 p.m.  This motion was seconded by Mr. H.T. Smith, and upon being put to 
a vote, passed unanimously by those members present.  
 
Mr. Trujillo asked that the May 14, 2012 Task Force meeting be posted on Websites and 
published by individuals from the various media outlets present at today’s meeting.   
 
In response to Ms. Pamela Perry’s question whether the Task Force had an online blog, Ms. Kim 
advised an email address was displayed on the front page of the CRTFs Webpage to receive 
feedback. 
 
Mr. Ron Fulton, 539 NE 210 Terrace, appeared before the Task Force and expressed concern 
regarding the lack of follow-up on issues discussed at previous CRTF meetings. 
 
Following further comments by Mr. Fulton, Vice Chairwoman Greer explained that the intent of 
today’s meeting was to allow residents of the community to make recommendations for 
proposed Charter amendments or revisions, rather than to discuss specific issues.   
 
Ms. Renita Holmes, a local resident, appeared before the Task Force and noted she was an 
experienced community activist who had worked on various community projects in an effort to 
educate people.  She presented the following recommendations for consideration by Task Force 
members:   

Clerk’s Summary and Official Minutes                                    Page 2 of 6 
Charter Review Task Force Meeting 

May 7, 2012 



• That Task Force members work closer with community action agencies;   
• that future Task Force meetings be scheduled later in the evening to accommodate people 

who work late and those with children;  
• that Task Force meetings be scheduled at different locations;  
• that the language in the Charter  be worded clearly and at a level understandable to the 

common reader; 
• that public speakers be allowed more time to speak during public hearings before the 

County Commission; and 
• that Task Force members collaborate and involve members of the Community Relations 

Boards in the process. 
 
Vice Chairwoman Greer noted Task Force would schedule public hearings throughout the 
County to solicit public input and feedback. 
 
Ms. Holmes pointed out that the average citizen would not know how to make recommendations 
for Charter amendments.  She suggested Task Force members find a way to target and involve 
individuals from various communities who could truly inform the process.  She noted the 
membership of the Task Force should include individuals who understood the mindset of the 
common people in order to maximize participation and improve the governance and political 
structure. 
 
Florida House Representative Carlos Lopez-Cantera appeared before the CRTF and noted he was 
speaking on behalf of him, as a resident of this community, and he would reserve his comments 
until later. He noted; however, that he did have some concerns regarding proposals to place 
proposed Charter amendments directly on the ballot such as County Commissioners’ salaries, 
voting requirements, and other issues.  
 
Vice Chairwoman Greer clarified that Task Force members were merely discussing these issues; 
and they would solicit public input in the form of memorandums, letters or written statements. 
 
Representative Cantera suggested Task Force members should discuss questions as to whether 
the County’s Sheriff and Tax Collector should be elected. 
 
In response to Mr. Manrique’s question regarding whether this information was on the Bill, Mr. 
Cantera noted it was not. 
 
Mr. H.T. Smith noted that this was a matter relating to the constitution, and one of his concerns 
was how frequently these issues were placed on ballots. 
 
Vice Chairwoman Greer asked that Representative Cantera provide a copy of the Bill for review 
by Task Force members. She also asked Mr. Cantera to submit a memorandum outlining his 
recommendations/suggestions for amendments to the Charter 
 
In response to Mr. Hans Ottinot’s comments regarding a recent case ruling by the Supreme 
Court, Assistant County Attorney Oren Rosenthal advised that the Miami-Dade County was 

Clerk’s Summary and Official Minutes                                    Page 3 of 6 
Charter Review Task Force Meeting 

May 7, 2012 



governed by the Home Rule Charter, and was excluded from analysis such as the Jacksonville 
case mentioned by Mr. Ottinot.   
 
Ms Kathy Charles appeared before the Task Force and read the following recommendations and 
concerns into the record:   

• Section 1.07 - Remove the language…”appointed person may succeed themselves unless 
otherwise prohibited by the Charter…” 

• Section 1.08 – Add the following language: “The commission may determine the Rules of 
its proceedings discipline its members for disorderly behavior, and with the concurrence 
of two-thirds, censure its members through a formal resolution of disapproval.” 

• Section 3.01 – Add the following language to the heading:  “…and Mayor 
• Section 6.05 – Remove language from first sentence: …and only the Board…and…”  

Also, add the following language following the first paragraph: “The electors of the 
County shall have the power to propose the creation of new municipalities in the 
unincorporated areas of the County by petition.  The petition process shall be identical with 
that for an initiatory or referendary petition, except that: 

1. The Clerk of the Circuit court shall approve the form of the petition. 
2. The person or persons circulating ht eh petition must obtain signatures of electors 

of the Commission District, concerned in numbers at least equal to four percent of 
the registered voters in the subject Commission district(s) on which the petition is 
of Election. 

3. The signed petition shall be filed with canvassed and certified by the Clerk of 
Circuit Court. 

4. The Board of County Commissioners must provide for a election not less than 90 
nor more than 120 days after the certification of the petition. 

5. The question of establishment of a municipality shall be placed on the ballot in a 
manner that will give the electors a clear choice for or against the creation of the 
municipality.  The result shall be determined by a majority vote of the electors 
voting on the question.” 

  
Mr. Terry Murphy noted the Bill was a problem and the Ethics Commission was unable to 
enforce the law without looking at the probable cause.  He also noted the penalty included 
removal from public office which was severe.  He noted this was an excellent issue for this Task 
Force to address. 
 
Vice Chairwoman Greer noted the need to seek advice from the County Attorney’s Office.  She 
asked Mr. Murphy to take the lead in developing recommendations and proposed Charter 
language in this area. 
 
Mr. Murphy noted he would welcome Ms. Charles’ assistance with any further 
recommendations. 
 
Mr. Smith noted Task Force members should be reminded to consider individuals who could 
provide input and invite them to participate in this process. 
 

Clerk’s Summary and Official Minutes                                    Page 4 of 6 
Charter Review Task Force Meeting 

May 7, 2012 



Vice Chairwoman Greer concurred with Mr. Smith, and suggested Mr. Gene Sterns and Mr. 
Wilbur Bell be invited. 
 
Vice Chairwoman Greer noted the need to increase communication.  She asked that a draft of 
proposed Charter amendments be placed online also with the recommendations. 
 
In response to Vice Chairwoman Greer’s question regarding whether or not the question 
regarding term limit should be placed on the ballot, Assistant County Attorney Rosenthal advised 
the terms of office for County Commissioners were two-four years, excluding terms prior to this 
year.  He also advised that the terms would have to be consecutive or the incumbent would have 
to come back after sitting out for a term.  Assistant County Attorney Rosenthal noted that he 
would provide the appropriate language for review by Task Force members. 
 
Mr. Lawrence Percival asked whether a proposal of an alternative language was appropriate.  
 
Assistant County Attorney Rosenthal advised that having two different sets of languages on the 
ballot would complicate the process and it would be difficult to draft proposals as they would be 
based on those that received the most votes.  He noted other recommendations could be 
discussed. 
 
Mr. Percival questioned whether Task Force members could present an alternative language 
could be presented to public once reviewed by the County Attorneys, Mr. Rosenthal said this 
was possible; however, the language would have to meet the requirements of the Courts. 
 
Following discussion among Task Force members, Mr. Robert Hyde, 444 NE 34th Street, 
appeared before the Task Force and emphasized the importance for Task Force members to 
improve communications with residents of the community in their language to increase 
participation. 
 
Vice Chairwoman Greer noted she appreciated Mr. Hyde’s comments, and reassured him that 
Task Force members were committed to improving communications with the community 
residents. 
 
Ms. Kathy Charles appeared before Task Force members and recommended that individuals 
throughout the community be invited to submit ideas. 
 
Mr. Amy Causwell, a County employee appeared before the members of the Task Force and 
noted that many people would be willing to make comments provided they were not made 
public. 
 
Ms. Inson Kim noted, for the record, that these meetings were public record and the names and 
addresses of all participants must be included as part of the record. 
 
Vice Chairwoman Greer suggested an email address be created that would not require 
participants to list their names and addresses, noting this Task Force could benefit from more 
ideas and recommendations. 

Clerk’s Summary and Official Minutes                                    Page 5 of 6 
Charter Review Task Force Meeting 

May 7, 2012 



 
Mr. Murphy noted he opposed the idea of receiving anonymous emails, and people should be 
willing to identify themselves so that everyone could be aware of the origin of specific 
recommendations.   
 
Members of the Task Force pointed out that the value of recommendations would not be diluted 
by allowing the name(s) of individuals who submitted them to remain anonymous.  They 
discussed concerns that County employees would not speak out because they would concerns 
about potential problems with superiors. 
 
Following further discussion among Task Force members regarding these issues, Assistant 
County Rosenthal advised that the names and addresses of individual participants must be 
identified as part of the public record in accordance with the Public Records Laws, Section 119.  
He further advised Task Force members that the laws protected employees from being punished 
or reprimanded for their comments; however, each employee must use his/her individual 
discretion. 
 
It was moved by Ms. Pamela Perry that the Task Force create an online blog that would allow 
anonymous comments.  This motion was seconded by Mr. H.T. Smith, and upon being put to a 
vote, the vote passed 11-1, Mr. Terry Murphy voted No. 
 
Ms. Renita Holmes reappeared before the Task Force and recommended that council members 
be prohibited from representing community boards due to potential Conflicts of Interests. 
 
There being no further business to discuss, the Charter Review Task Force meeting was 
adjourned at 7:15 p.m. 
 

Clerk’s Summary and Official Minutes                                    Page 6 of 6 
Charter Review Task Force Meeting 

May 7, 2012 







lmejia
Text Box
Kathy Charles May 7, 2012











 
 
 

MIAMI-DADE COUNTY 
FINAL OFFICIAL MINUTES 

CHARTER REVIEW TASK FORCE  
 
 

Board of County Commissioners 
North Dade Regional Library 

2455 NW 183 Street 
Miami, Florida 33056 

 

 

May 8 , 2012 
As Advertised 

 
Harvey Ruvin, Clerk 

Board of County Commissioners 
 

Christopher Agrippa, Division Chief 
Clerk of the Board Division 

 
 

Alicia Stephenson, Commission Reporter 
(305) 375-1475 

 



Page 1 of 6 

Charter Review Task Force 
Public Hearing  
May 8, 2012 

 
The Charter Review Task Force (CRTF) convened on May 8, 2012, at 5:30 p.m. in North 
Dade Regional Library Auditorium, 2455 NW 183 Street, Miami, Florida. The following 
members were present: Chairman Rene Garcia, Mr. Terry Murphy, and Mr. Don Slesnick 
(Vice Chairwoman Evelyn Langlieb Greer, and Task Force members Ms. Yolanda 
Aguilar, Mr. Carlos Manrique, Mr. Lawrence Percival, Ms. Pamela Perry, Dr. Walter T. 
Richardson, Representative Carlos Trujillo were absent. Members John Patrick Julien, 
Hans Ottinot, and H.T. Smith arrived later).   
 

• Welcome and Introduction 
 

Chairman Rene Garcia called the public hearing to order at 5:39 PM.   
 
At the request of Chairman Garcia, Task Force members formally introduced themselves. 
 
Mr. Murphy introduced himself as Commissioner Barbara Jordan’s appointee. 
 
Chairman Garcia introduced himself Commissioner Esteban Bovo’s appointee. 
 
Mr. Slesnick introduced himself, noting he was appointed by Chairman Joe Martinez. 
 

• Public Hearing 
 
Chairman Garcia noted that the presentations by public speakers and all other comments 
would be recorded as a part of the official record, and the minutes and recordings would 
be available to those members not present today. 
 
Chairman Garcia opened the public hearing and the following persons appeared: 
 
1. Ms. Esperanza Reynolds, 8465 Menteith Terrace, Miami Lakes, appeared before the 

Task Force and noted she was not aware that time limits were not imposed on 
presentations before the Charter Review Task Force (CRTF) when she spoke at the 
public hearing last night (5/7). She noted she thought the speakers only had two 
minutes to speak and therefore, rehearsed and presented a speech that was limited to 
two minutes.  Ms. Reynolds noted that she now understood she had ample time to 
speak.  

 
Ms. Reynolds paraphrased the following preamble to the Miami-Dade County Home 
Rule Charter:  
 

“We, the people of this County, in order to secure for ourselves the benefits and 
responsibilities of home rule, to create a metropolitan government to serve our 
present and future needs, and to endow our municipalities with the rights of self 
determination in their  local affairs, do under God adopt this home rule Charter.” 

 



Page 2 of 6 

Ms. Reynolds noted the Charter also states that the government was created to protect 
the governed, not itself.  She questioned why commissioners insisted on governing 
without term limits, since institutionalizing positions was questionable.   
 
Ms. Reynolds asked why the Assistant County Attorney present at last night’s (5/7) 
public hearing expressed himself in a manner that the average person could not 
understand.  She said Assistant County Attorney Rosenthal was asked clearly last 
night whether language could be crafted that captures the expressed intent of the 
people accurately and concisely and placed on the ballot for approval by the voters.  
She said a recommendation was that the people, through the Charter Review Task 
Force, be ensured that going forth, the ballot reflected what they wanted.  She 
suggested that Task Force members recommend that the ideas and expressed intent of 
the people be placed on the ballot in 2012, without any changes or interference by 
members of the County Commission.     
 

Ms. Reynolds inquired why the wording of proposed charter amendments was confusing 
and written in a manner that forced the public to vote for something it did not want.  She 
expressed concern that at County Commission meetings, commissioners always 
questioned the County Attorney and Assistant County Attorneys regarding how to defend 
themselves, when tax dollars were being used to pay the County Attorney’s Office to 
protect the governed.  Ms. Reynolds asked why this Task Force was composed of mostly 
legislators and/or attorneys, and did not include any representation from the common 
residents. She suggested that the Charter be amended to require that a group be created 
consisting of a random sampling of the population, to review performance and to assess 
the needs of the people on a quarterly basis when officials were required to present 
progress reports. 
 

Ms. Reynolds indicated that members of the County Attorney’s Office wrote ballot 
questions in such a way that commissioners got what they wanted.  Ms. Reynolds 
indicated it was also agreed last night that a process should be created in which 
proposed Charter language would be sent to a select group of residents to test how it 
was perceived.  
 
Ms. Reynolds questioned whether the governed was protected when 70% of the 
County’s operating budget was spent on salaries and benefits.  She noted that during a 
town hall meeting with Mayor Carlos Gimenez, it was suggested that students 
graduating from colleges and universities be hired as summer interns to infuse fresh 
ideas on governmental operations.  She noted this would eliminate one quarter of the 
County’s salary and benefits structure and educate the next generation about the 
functions of government, and prepare them to inspire meaningful change in the 
business community.   
 
She asked if the governed is really protected when the government, in desperate need 
to collect revenue, identifies creative ways to fine, tax, and penalize the governed. 
 
Ms. Reynolds asked why business owners received recurring penalties for violations 
20 consecutive days, when they were helpless to comply with the County’s 
requirements.  Ms. Reynolds expressed appreciation that a recommendation made at 



Page 3 of 6 

last night’s public hearing to reschedule the CRTF public hearing scheduled for 
Friday May 11, 2012 to Monday, May 14, 2012, was taken to heart.  She questioned 
why Town Hall meetings were scheduled near the Town of Miami Lakes on the same 
night as Council meetings. She said voters would have an opportunity to vote for or 
against all elected officials in November 2012, which may be the best reform.  She 
said she believed a silent majority of the United States’ population felt so 
disenfranchised that they were no longer participating in the electoral process.  
 

2. Mr. Richard Mason, 3650 NW 181 Street, appeared before the Task Force and 
expressed concern that County employees failed to exhibit the honesty and the 
courtesy that were called for in the Citizens’ Bill of Rights.  He suggested that each 
employee be required to read and sign a copy of the Citizens’ Bill of Rights when 
he/she was hired, and that the signed copy be placed in his/her personnel file.  

 
Mr. Mason noted the Commission on Ethics and Public Trust was mentioned in the 
Citizens’ Bill of Rights in the Charter.  He expressed concern that when a resident 
appeared before this Ethics Commission to complain about how they were treated, 
that resident was told that he/she would have to go to court in order to address the 
issue. Mr. Mason noted the Independent Review Panel that existed several years ago 
was very helpful, and should be reinstated and incorporated in the Charter. He added 
that residents should be able to file complaints and identify problems for follow-up by 
the County Administration or the appropriate entity.   
 
Mr. Mason noted that he participated in public hearings between 1999 and 2001 
regarding a master plan for Haulover Beach Park.  He said a $4.5 million Safe 
Neighborhood Parks bond was sold to make improvements in the park, but he did not 
see any indication of how the money was used, and none of the projects in the master 
plan were completed.  Mr. Mason said the designated clothing-optional naturist 
family beach at Haulover was classified as a tourist destination, and 
generated $800 million in revenue for the County, and created over 10,000 
local jobs; yet the Greater Miami Convention and Visitors Bureau had not 
spent any money promoting it.  Mr. Mason expressed concern that the 
beach’s parking lot brought in $1.5 to $1.7 million per year in parking 
revenue, yet his group was unsuccessful in its attempts to obtain an 
assessment regarding whether the lot could be expanded. He expressed 
concern that the beach’s parking lot revenue went into the County’s General 
Fund and as a result, no funds were available to provide amenities and 
improvements needed to continue supporting the large population at 
Haulover Beach Park.  He suggested Task Force members recommend that 
a provision be incorporated in the Charter to address this issue. 
 
Mr. Mason noted that the parking lot’s revenues could be used to provide a 
needed police presence and adequate parking at Haulover Beach.  He 
expressed concern that that an agreement was signed in June 2010, to allow 
a boat storage house to be placed in one of the park’s parking lots, but no 
public hearing was held. He further expressed concern that the lot would be 



Page 4 of 6 

too small to support the number of visitors at Haulover, the storage house 
would block the scenic view, and the destruction of a mangrove area was 
contemplated. Mr. Mason said no resolution bypassing Article 7 should be 
presented to the County Commission.  
 

In response to Chairman Garcia’s request for clarification regarding whether 
Mr. Mason was recommending that the Charter include a provision for park 
revenues to remain in park budgets, Mr. Mason noted he was recommending 
that parking revenue or a portion thereof, remain in the respective park budget.  

 
In response to Mr. Mason’s comments regarding bypassing Article 7, Mr. 
Murphy noted he had heard similar commentary in relation to a marina at 
Matheson Hammock Park.  He agreed that language in Article 7 should be 
reviewed.  He said it was his understanding that a boat storage house operation 
was a commercial activity; and that pursuant to Article 7, a commercial activity 
performed on County-owned land was subject to a referendum. 

  
In response to Mr. Mason’s comment regarding the Ethics Commission’s 
response to complaints, Mr. Murphy noted the Ethics Commission would not 
find probable cause to proceed on a complaint involving a violation of the 
Citizens’ Bill of Rights because the remedy provided in the Charter was to 
remove someone from office. He noted a suggestion was made at the previous 
public hearing (5/7) to include a provision in the Charter to allow the Ethics 
Commission to reprimand, fine, and take other punitive measures to remedy 
situations without requiring the complainant to go to the Third District Court to 
sue or remove an elected official from office. 
 
At the request of Chairman Garcia, Task Force members who arrived after the beginning 
of tonight’s public hearing stated their names and who appointed them to the Task Force. 
 
State Representative John Patrick Julien, District 104, noted he was Commissioner Jean 
Monestime’s appointee. 
 
Mr. Hans Ottinot noted he was the City Attorney of the City of Sunny Isles Beach and  
was appointed by Shirley Gibson, Mayor, City of Miami Gardens. 
 
Mr. H.T. Smith noted he was the County Commission’s Vice Chairwoman Audrey 
Edmonson’s appointee. 

 
Mr. Mason noted although suing and removing elected officials from office 
may be viewed as severe measures, it may also be necessary to fire staff.  
He also noted he believed a portion of resort taxes should be dedicated to provide 
police patrol and lifeguards on the County’s beaches.  
 



Page 5 of 6 

3. Ms. Shirley Smith Mason, 3650 NW 181 Street, noted she represented the Beach 
Education Advocates for Culture, Health, Environment, and Safety (BEACHES). She 
expressed concern that the Parks Department told vendors for concession services 
how to bid for contracts; and that punitive measures were taken against those who 
spoke out against what they witnessed. She indicated that firing members of County 
staff as punishment might be the right thing to do. She expressed concern that the 
members of Parks Department manipulated the bidding process to get results that 
Department Directors and commissioners wanted, under the disguise of correct 
protocol, which was not in the best interest of the public. She noted that to win the 
public confidence, the County Commission should reevaluate its operations by 
improving collaborations with vendors/contractors biding on contracts as well as 
County staff.  

 
She noted that when members of BEACHES pointed out flaws in the procurement 
process on behalf of a concessionaire, an Assistant County Attorney told them that 
he/she did not care whether the concessionaire made money, as long as the individual 
got his/her share. 

 
In response to Mr. Murphy’s inquiry regarding whether Ms. Mason had any thoughts on 
the Inspector General’s (IG’s) Office, Ms. Mason noted she believed the IG’s Office 
should be independent and included in the Charter. 

 
Mr. Julien noted the Charter was silent on the procurement process and that Section 5.01 
of the Charter states that the County should have a finance department.  He asked 
whether the Finance Department’s procedures manual included a procurement process 
and whether Ms. Mason was familiar with it. 
 
Ms. Mason noted she knew the procurement process, but she was trying to convey how 
County staff drew up Requests for Proposals to exclude all but one or two companies.  
She added that when these problems were mentioned to staff members, they did not send 
new information to all potential bidders, but only to a select few. 
 
Chairman Garcia asked that a presentation regarding the procurement process be made at 
the public hearing scheduled on May 9th, since he did not understand how it worked and 
how the County Commissioners were involved.  
 
Mr. Ottinot acknowledged former City of Miami Gardens Councilman Melvin Bratton, 
whom he noted was in the audience. 
 
In response to Mr. Slesnick’s question regarding whether a location for the public hearing 
to be held on Monday, May 14th could be confirmed, Ms. Inson Kim, Director of Policy 
and Legislative Affairs in the Mayor’s Office, said she was reaching out to the City of 
Hialeah to confirm that the Wilde Community Center was available, and staff would like 
the public hearing to be held at that facility since it was advertised, even though the 
meeting date in the original advertisement would change.  
 
Mr. Slesnick asked Ms. Kim to follow up on that the next morning (5/9). 
 



Page 6 of 6 

In response to Mr. Murphy’s question concerning whether the Task Force meeting 
scheduled for May 17, 2012 would begin at 9:00 a.m., and whether the time the meeting 
would end was advertised, Ms. Kim noted the meeting was advertised to begin at 9:00 
a.m.; however, the time the meeting would end was not advertised. 
 
Chairman Garcia noted it was better not to advertise the time the public hearing would 
end. 
 
Mr. Slesnick requested that a brief report regarding the County’s procurement process be 
presented at the Task Force’s May 17th meeting. 
 
Mr. Ottinot asked that a report regarding the annexation and incorporation process at the 
May 17th meeting. 
 
In response to Mr. Slesnick’s inquiry concerning whether the Independent Review Panel 
(IRP) still existed, Mr. Murphy noted he believed the IRP’s Executive Director position 
was eliminated from the budget two years ago. 
 
Mr. Slesnick asked Ms. Kim to submit to him documentation regarding what the former 
IRP used to do.  He noted that Assistant County Attorney Oren Rosenthal informed him 
prior to today’s meeting that he was working on technical revisions to the Charter that 
could be discussed at the May 17th Task Force meeting. 
 

• Adjournment  
 
Hearing no further business to come before the Task Force, Chairman Garcia adjourned 
the meeting at 6:17 PM. 
 
 
 







MIAMI-DADE CHARTER REVIEW TASK FORCE 
PUBLIC HEARING 

CLERK'S SUMMARY AND OFFICIAL MINUTES OF MEETING 
MAY 9,2012 

The Miami-Dade Charter Review Task Force (the Task Force) convened the public hearing 
meeting at the Miami-Dade West Kendall Public Library Auditorium, 10201 Hammocks 
Boulevard, Miami, Florida, at 5:30 p.m. There being present Chairman Rene Garcia, Vice 
Chairwoman Evelyn Langlieb Greer, Mr. b a n d o  Bucelo, Representative John Patrick Julien, 
Mr. Carlos Manrique, Mr. Terry Murphy, Mr. Lawrence Percival, and Mr. Donald Slesnick 
(Reverend Dr. Walter Richardson and Professor H. T. Smith were late). (Ms. Yolanda Aguilar, 
Mr. Joe Aniola, Mr. Jeffrey Bercow, Mayor Juan Carlos Bemudez, City of Hialeah 
Councilwoman Isis Garcia-Martinez and Councilman Luis Gonzalez, Ms. Pamela Perry, Mr. 
Hans Ottinot, and Representative Carlos Trujillo were absent) 

In addition to the members of the Task Force, the following elected officials and staff members 
were present: Chairman of the Board of County Commissioners Joe Martinez, Assistant County 
Attorney Cynthia Johnson-Stacks, Ms. Inson Kim, Ms. Lorna Mejia, Mr. Jeve Clayton, and 
Deputy Clerk Flora Real. 

Chairman Rene Garcia called the meeting to order at approximately 5:41 p.m., and welcomed the 
Task Force members and all others present. 

WELCOME AND INTRODUCTION 

Following a formal introduction of each of the Task Force members and staff, Chairman Rene 
Garcia explained the charge of the Task Force. 

Chaiman Joe Martinez, Board of County Commissioners, thanked all Task Force members for 
their participation in this important charge, which was to review the County's Home Rule 
Charter adopted in May 21, 1957. He noted the recommendations of this Task Force would have 
a constitutional impact, and urged its members to approach this responsibility comprehensively 
and bring forth conscientious, well-thought out recommendations. 

Chairman of the Board Martinez commented on all of the infrastructure improvements made to 
the West Kendall area. He noted this would be his last tern as a member of the County 
Commission. 

Upon conclusion of the introductory remarks, Chairman Garcia proceeded to consider the public 
input. 

PUBLIC HEARING 

Chairman Garcia opened the public hearing to have the public provide input and make 
suggestions. 

Page 1 of 8 Miami-Dade Charter Review Task Force 
Public Hearing 

Clerk's Summsuy and Official Minutes of Meeting 

May 9,2012 































 

 
 

MIAMI-DADE COUNTY 
FINAL OFFICIAL MINUTES 

Charter Review Task Force 
 

Board of County Commissioners 
South Dade Regional Library 

2nd Floor Auditorium 
10750 SW 211 Street 

Miami, Florida 

 

 

Thursday, May 10, 2012 
As Advertised 

 
Harvey Ruvin, Clerk 

Board of County Commissioners 
 

Christopher Agrippa, Division Chief 
Clerk of the Board Division 

 
 

Scott Rappleye, Commission Reporter 
(305) 375-5108 

 
 



Clerk’s Summary and Official Minutes 
Charter Review Task Force 

May 10, 2012 
 

1

CLERK’S SUMMARY AND OFFICIAL MINUTES 
CHARTER REVIEW TASK FORCE PUBLIC HEARING 

May 10, 2012 
 
The Charter Review Task Force convened in a meeting on My 10, 2012, at 5:30 p.m. in 
the 2nd Floor Auditorium of the Miami-Dade County South Dade Regional Library, 
10750 SW 211 Street, Miami, Florida.  The following members were present: Chairman 
Rene Garcia, Vice-Chairwoman Evelyn Greer, and members Ms. Yolanda Aguilar, Mr. 
Carlos Manrique, Mr. Terry Murphy, Ms. Pamela Perry, Mr. Walter Richardson, and Mr. 
H.T. Smith. 
  

• Welcome and Introduction 
  
Chairman Rene Garcia called the meeting to order at 5:42 p.m.  
 
Chairman Garcia explained that the purpose of this meeting was to provide the public 
access to Task Force members and to allow individuals to voice their comments/concerns 
regarding amendments to the Home Rule Charter. He noted the Task Force would start 
deliberating on proposed recommendations and revisions to the Charter May 17, 2012.  
  
Following Chairman Garcia’s comments, the Task Force members in attendance formally 
introduced themselves.    
  

• Public Hearing 
 
Chairman Garcia opened the public hearing.  
  
Ms. Melissa Llahues, 200 S Biscayne Boulevard, Latin Builders Association, noted the 
previous Charter Review Task Force recommended to the County Commission that any 
application requesting to move the Urban Development Boundary (UDB) require 
approval by a three-fourth majority vote of the County Commission or 10 affirmative 
votes, as opposed to a two-third majority or nine affirmative votes; that an independent 
body be constituted every five years to conduct studies to show exactly where the UDB 
should be, and that any recommended changes by the independent body be approved by a 
majority of the County Commission and subsequently by the voters. She pointed out that 
the Community Planning Act implemented by the Florida Legislature prohibited all 
referendums on comprehensive plan amendments, which prevented this recommendation 
from being placed on the ballot in 2012.  
 
Ms. Llahues requested that the 2012 Charter Review Task Force not make any 
recommendations to change the process for moving the UDB. She noted the existing 
process worked as evident by the fact that the UDB was moved only five times in the last 
20 years. She clarified that these five changes impacted 1,900 acres, and that only one 
application was approved to allow a residential use. Ms. Llahues noted that the UDB line 
was not immovable, and that the Comprehensive Development Master Plan (CDMP) 



Clerk’s Summary and Official Minutes 
Charter Review Task Force 

May 10, 2012 
 

2

clearly states the factors that should be considered before approving an application to 
move the UDB. 
  
Discussion ensued between Mr. Murphy and Ms. Llahues regarding specific applications 
to change the UDB line.  
  
Ms. Greer noted the Community Planning Act had not been tested in the courts, and that 
the Act could violate the County’s right to control its own Zoning process through the 
Home Rule Charter. She pointed out the UDB applications that were not approved 
generated a significant amount of public opposition. 
  
Ms. Llahues noted the reason UDB applications were not approved was not always a 
result of public outcry, noting some applications were approved by the County 
Commission, and subsequently denied by the Department of Community Affairs. 
  
Ms. Greer noted the County Commission should listen to public opinion and not move 
the UDB. 
  
Mr. Murphy noted he would research whether County staff filed an application to move 
the UDB in a manner that would result in hundreds of acres of land to go from inside to 
outside the UDB.   
  
Mr. Richardson requested Ms. Llahues advise the Task Force regarding the Latin 
Builders Association’s position on term limits and a salary increases for commissioners.  
  
Ms. Llahues noted the Latin Builders Association did not support term limits due to the 
potential to deplete the institutional knowledge among commissioners. She noted; 
however, that members of the Latin Builders Association had not discussed the salary for 
commissioners. 
  
Mr. Jeff Bercow, 200 S Biscayne Boulevard, pointed out that Yankee Town, Florida had 
filed litigation to challenge the Community Planning Act.  
 
Mr. Bercow noted the fact that the UDB applications that generate heavy opposition were 
not approved supported Ms. Llahues’ argument that Task Force should not recommend 
any changes to the UDB process. He noted the existing process worked, and noted he 
agreed with Ms. Llahues that this Task Force should not recommend any changes to the 
current UDB rules. He explained that the UDB process was effective for the following 
reasons: 
 

1. The County accepted applications to move the UDB once every two years; 
2. the County required substantial fees to file an application to move the UDB; 
3. the County Commission had to approve an application to expand the UDB by 

two-third majority vote;  



Clerk’s Summary and Official Minutes 
Charter Review Task Force 

May 10, 2012 
 

3

4. the CDMP had stringent policies to allow periodic expansion of the UDB, 
particularly Policy LUAF; 

  
Mr. Bercow expressed concern that adding more language to the Charter regarding the 
UDB would further politicize it and detract from its intended use, which was a land use 
planning tool.   
  
Ms. Perry questioned whether the courts could rule against the County Commission if the 
Commission approved an application to expand the UDB that did not meet the 
established criteria.   
  
Mr. Bercow noted the State of Florida Department of Community Affairs (DCA) 
overruled an application approved by the County Commission for failure to demonstrate 
that commercial land did not exist in that area.  He explained that following the DCA 
decision, the application went to an Administrative Hearing Officer, as well as the 
Governor’s cabinet and ultimately, the State of Florida First District Court of Appeals.  
  
Chairman Garcia questioned who set up the current UDB process.  
  
Mr. Bercow explained the UDB was part of the CDMP as well as the County Code of 
Miami-Dade, as established by the County Commission.  
  
Ms. Greer expressed concern that the County Commission had the authority to change the 
UDB process with an ordinance, and that the DCA no longer existed. She pointed out that 
many residents did not have confidence that the County Commission would not change 
the UDB process.  
  
Mr. Bercow pointed out that, pursuant to the DCA being dissolved, a State of Florida 
land planning agency had regulatory oversight of the CDMP process Statewide, and that  
would review all decisions made by local governments.  
  
Ms. Greer noted the Task Force would have to discuss ways to  improve public  
confidence that the County Commission would change the UDB process.   
  
In response to Mr. Manrique’s question why he opposed having an independent body 
review the UDB every five years, Mr. Bercow noted he did not think it was necessary. He 
also noted this independent body would be subject to the same lobbying and political 
pressures as the County Commission. 
  
Mr. Manrique asked Mr. Bercow why he believed having an independent body to review 
the Charter every five years would cause concern.  
  
Mr. Bercow noted the current process required the County’s planning staff to conduct 
such a review every seven years. He pointed out that a most recent study concluded the 
land supply in the County would be depleted by 2021.  



Clerk’s Summary and Official Minutes 
Charter Review Task Force 

May 10, 2012 
 

4

  
Mr. Smith requested Mr. Bercow and Ms. Llahues provide the Task Force members with 
an argument to support the existence of another entity, besides the County Commission, 
to provide oversight on UDB expansion.   
  
Chairman Garcia explained he understood the argument to be that the UDB process had 
worked without being part of the Charter. He clarified that some government processes 
do work and not every issue could be deliberated by the Task Force.   
  
Mr. Smith stressed the importance of the UDB on quality of life in the County.   
  
Chairman Garcia suggested the Task Force identify residents who supported changes to 
the UDB process and hear their arguments.  
  
Mr. Murphy pointed out the requirement for approval by a 2/3 majority of the County 
Commission halted expansion of the UDB for residential projects.   
  
Ms. Perry clarified the requirement for approval by a two-third majority was part of the 
Code and could be amended to revert back to requiring a simple majority.  
  
Mr. Bercow noted polls indicated that 70 percent of County residents opposed moving 
the UDB. He explained that the issues of disenfranchisement were the most concerning to 
County residents at this time. 
  
Mr. Wilbur Bell, 18271 SW 109 Avenue, Vice-Chair, Community Council 14, noted 
Community Council 14 had approved several applications to expand the UDB. He 
explained the UDB was not a current issue.  Mr. Bell explained he wanted the Perrine 
area west of highway US 1 to be incorporated.  
  
Mr. Richardson asked Mr. Bell what changes could be made to the Charter to ensure that  
groups seeking to incorporate could do so.  
  
Chairman Garcia pointed out the speakers at the May 9th public hearing expressed 
concern that the County Commission could impede incorporation.   
  
In response to Mr. Richardson’s inquiry regarding proposals to impose term limits and 
increase  commissioners’ salaries, Mr. Bell noted he supported two, four-year term limits, 
and he believed the proposal to increase commissioners’ salaries should be determined by 
the voters. 
  
Ms. Greer pointed out the County Commission prevented the area of Perrine and 
Richmond Heights from incorporating, and that this area would benefit by removing the 
existing language in the Charter delegating power to the County Commission to stop the 
incorporation and annexation processes.  
  



Clerk’s Summary and Official Minutes 
Charter Review Task Force 

May 10, 2012 
 

5

Mr. Kent Forbes, 25121 SW 120 Place, spoke in support of the incorporation 
Countywide. He explained that natural boundaries should be used to set boundaries for 
areas that annex or incorporate. He expressed concern that the unincorporated areas were 
underserved and opportunities to secure state and federal grant funding was limited.   
  
Mr. Smith urged Mr. Bell and Mr. Forbes to identify specific hurdles preventing 
incorporation and to prepare Charter recommendations or revision for review by Task 
Force members.   
  
Mr. Forbes noted the only hurdle his community faced was the moratorium on 
incorporations put in place by the County Commission.   
  
Mr. Ramon Ramos, 9897 SW 4th Street, appeared before  the Task Force and noted he 
supported the proposal to limit the terms of office to two full terms. He explained that a 
commissioner could serve more than eight years if he or she replaced a commissioner 
between elections. He noted this limit should apply retroactively to incumbent 
commissioners. He noted he also supported Countywide incorporation, the proposal to 
increase commissioners’ salary consistent with the State formula and that outside 
employment be prohibited. 
  
In response to Ms. Perry’s inquiry regarding the potential to loose institutional 
knowledge as a result of term limits, Mr. Ramos noted he did not feel institutional 
knowledge was critical.  
  
Ms. Aguilar noted the learning curve was several years, particularly considering the 
complex issues facing the County. She explained she was not convinced that eight years 
was the best limit.  
  
Chairman Garcia noted losing institutional knowledge was inevitable with new 
commissioners; however, new commissioners would be more likely to ask questions that 
incumbent commissioners did not ask.  
  
Mr. Ramos noted he thought the positives of term limits outweighed the negatives.  
  
Mr. Murphy expressed concern that commissioners would be less accountable to the 
public in their final term.  
  
Mr. Manrique pointed out the County Commission had already approved placing a 
question on the ballot asking voters whether commissioners’ terms of office should be 
limited to two, four-year terms. He noted the institutional knowledge would remain with 
staff in the case of term limits, and staff would take over. He explained that in order to 
impose term limits successfully, they must be imposed in a way that institutional 
knowledge resided on the County Commission, and not only County staff.   
 



Clerk’s Summary and Official Minutes 
Charter Review Task Force 

May 10, 2012 
 

6

Mr. Ramos noted the commissioners relied on staff’s recommendations now, and term 
limits were not in place.   
  
Mr. Forbes noted he supported proposal to impose term limits, increase commisisoners’ 
salaries, and restrict on outside employment for commissioners. To avoid losing 
institutional knowledge, Mr. Forbes suggested the incumbent commissioners be allowed 
to serve one more term after completing two full, four year terms. 
  
Mr. Alfonso McCray, 18040 SW 104 Avenue, suggested the incorporation process be 
amended to require areas wishing to incorporate to submit a proposal to the County 
Commission; that the County Commission direct staff to conduct the necessary research, 
and that question be placed on the ballot for approval by the electorate. Mr. McCray 
suggested that questions to amend the Charter be placed on the ballot for general 
elections only. He spoke in support of allowing the voters in each County Commission 
District to decide whether the respective commissioner’s salary should be increased; and 
the commissioners’ terms of office be limited, although he did not support term limits. He 
suggested the language contained within the Charter relating to commissioners salaries be 
removed and established by ordinance.   
  
Mr. Michael Rosenberg, 13030 N Calusa Club Drive, appeared before the Task Force and 
spoke in opposition to term limits for commissioners. He expressed concern regarding the 
disparity in campaign funds for incumbent commissioners and their challengers. He noted 
the chief of staff for each commissioner better understood the flaws in County 
Government and would be the best persons for the Task Force to solicit input for 
revisions to the Charter.   
 
Mr. Rosenberg noted he was President of the Kendall Federation of Homeowner 
Associations (KFHA). He presented a resolution from the KFHA urging the Task Force 
to consider the following recommendations: 
 

1. Establish a two term limit for County commissioners; 
2. change the composition of the County Commission to a mix of single-member 

districts and at-large districts; 
3. increase the salary for commissioners by $10,000 the first year in office, and 

increase by $5,000 annually up to $50,000, and that no outside employment be 
allowed once the salary reached $50,000; 

4. require a ¾ majority of commissioners to approve changes to the UDB, and that 
an independent body review the UDB every five years; 

5. have an independent board oversee the Inspector General;  
6. remove the County Commission’s ability to block incorporation elections, and 

that such elections should not be scheduled by special elections; 
7. restore the 10 percent threshold required for registered voters’ signatures on 

incorporation petitions; and 
8. prohibit the County from requiring mitigation from newly incorporated cities.  

  



Clerk’s Summary and Official Minutes 
Charter Review Task Force 

May 10, 2012 
 

7

Mr. Richardson questioned why the KFHA did not recommend the state formula be used 
to set commissioners’ salaries. 
 
Mr. Rosenberg explained that the public did not support salary increases for 
commissioners.  
  
Mr. Richardson noted a speaker at the May 9th public hearing suggested that the 
commissioners receive a salary based on the State formula, that commissioners be 
prohibited from outside employment, and that an Ethics Commission be established to 
ensure compliance. He questioned how KFHA might view this proposal. 
  
Mr. Rosenberg noted the idea of an independent Ethics Commission was a good idea, 
however, he expressed concern that it may not be practical in terms of monitoring outside 
employment. 
  
Mr. Murphy suggested the idea of a salary increase for commissioners could be more 
favorable to voters if it would not be effective until after the next election.  
  
Mr. Manrique questioned whether retirement pensions would violate the provision to 
hold no outside employment.  
  
Mr. Rosenberg noted the boundaries for what constituted outside employment were 
difficult to define.  
  
Ms. Kathy Charles, 15471 SW 152 Court, noted Article 4 - County Manager in the 
Charter would become a reserved article in November 2012 when the language regarding 
the County Manager would be stricken. She suggested Article 4 become an article 
regarding conflict of interest, ethics and lobbying. She explained that ethics couldn’t be 
legislated, however, minimum standards could be clearly stated. 
  
Ms. Charles suggested that Section 4.01 be titled Voting Conflicts, and that it include the 
same language currently found in Article 5 Section 5.03 of the Charter with a small 
amendment to apply the language to County commissioners.  
  
Ms. Charles suggested that Section 4.02 be titled Enactment of Conflicts of Interest Code 
and Implementation of a Code of Ethics, and that the existing language from the Code of 
Ethics in the Miami-Dade County Code be used.  
  
Ms. Charles suggested that Section 4.03 be titled Examination of Matters Related to 
Ethical Conduct and Lobbying, and that the language in this section would give the 
Commission on Ethics and Public Trust the authority to examine matters related to the 
Code of Ethics and conflict of interests.   
  
Ms. Charles suggested that Section 4.04 be titled Use of Public Property, and that the 
language in this section would require the approval of the electorate to use tax dollars for 



Clerk’s Summary and Official Minutes 
Charter Review Task Force 

May 10, 2012 
 

8

the benefit of private individuals, partnerships, or corporations. She noted this section 
was aimed at avoiding another controversy like the stadium for the Miami Marlins.   
 
Regarding the UDB line, Ms. Charles noted the language already existed in the Charter 
that required periodic review of the UDB. She suggested the Charter be amended to 
provide specific calendar dates for those reviews.  
  
Mr. Murphy noted the County Manager made recommendations to the County 
Commission for County contracts if the Mayor had a conflict of interest. He questioned, 
in the absence of a County Manager, who should make the recommendation when the 
Mayor had a conflict of interest.  
 
Ms. Charles suggested the Mayor designate a person.  
 
Mr. Murphy noted the Charter did not include a provision for this scenario.  
  
Chairman Garcia expressed appreciation to those in attendance for their participation.  
  

• Adjournment 
 
There being no other business to come before the Task Force, the meeting adjourned at 
7:34 p.m.  
 
 
 
 

_____________________________________ 
                                                                      Rene Garcia, Chairman 

                                                                     Charter Review Task Force 









lmejia
Text Box
Kathy Charles May 10, 2012



























 
 

Chairman’s 
Items 

 



Timeline (Proposed) 

 

May 17      Charter Task Force Meeting 

May 23     Charter Task Force Meeting 

May 30     Charter Task Force Meeting 

June 6      Charter Task Force Meeting 

June 13     Preliminary Report Circulated to members 

June 20/21    Public Hearings Re: CRTF Recommendations 

June 25 or 26    CRTF Meeting to consider public feedback 

June 29     Final Report Circulated to members 

July 3      Deadline for dissenting opinions 

July 5      Final Report transmitted to BCC 

July 6      Submit to agenda coordinator for inclusion on 7/19 BCC agenda 

July 17      BCC meeting 



 
 

Staff Reports / 
Presentations 

 





1

Charter Review Task Force 

Incorporation in Miami-Dade County

May 17, 2012



2

History

In 1957, with adoption of the Miami-Dade 
County Home Rule Amendment and Charter, 
incorporation and annexation authority shifted 
from the State legislature to the Board of County 
Commissioners (BCC). Article 6 of the Charter 
provides incorporation and annexation 
guidelines.



3

Charter Requirements

Section 6.04 - Changes In Municipal 
Boundaries

BCC may effect a boundary change after 
obtaining the approval of the municipal 
governing bodies concerned and after hearing 
the Planning Advisory Board (PAB) 
recommendation; if there are over 250 
resident electors in the area being considered 
an affirmative vote is required.



4

Charter Requirements

Section 6.05 - Creation of New 
Municipalities

Only the BCC may authorize the creation of a 
new municipality in the unincorporated areas 
of the County after hearing the 
recommendations of the PAB, after a public 
hearing, and after a majority vote of the 
electors residing within the proposed 
boundaries.



5

Code Requirements

Chapter 20 of the Code of Miami-Dade County 
governs the Annexation and Incorporation 
process.
Petitions for incorporation must include consent 
from 25 percent of the electors in the proposed 
area.
Once the petition is deemed complete, the BCC 
may form a Municipal Advisory Committee 
(MAC) to study the desirability and feasibility of 
creating a municipality.



6

Incorporated Area v. UMSA

At the time of Charter adoption, twenty-six municipalities 
were in existence. Approximately 35% of the County’s 
population lived in the unincorporated municipal service 
area (UMSA).
Prior to the incorporation of Miami Lakes, thirty 
municipalities were in existence and 53 % of the 
population lived in UMSA.
Today there are 34 municipalities and about 44% of the 
population lives in UMSA.



7

The incorporation of Key Biscayne in 1991 led to 
new interest in the creation of municipalities 
throughout the County.
Three additional municipalities were created in 
the 1990s:

Aventura, 1995
Pinecrest, 1996
Sunny Isles Beach, 1997

Incorporation in the 1990s



8

As a result of these incorporations, concern 
grew regarding the equitable distribution of 
resources and possible detrimental effects on 
the entire community. 
In December 1997, the BCC adopted a one-year 
moratorium on incorporation, directing the 
County Manager to study the impact the loss of 
revenue had on the remainder of UMSA.

Incorporation in the 1990s



9

BCC-adopted Policies
After the moratorium, the BCC adopted policies 
addressing the concerns of equity and self-
determination.

02-26 Requires new municipalities to remain in the fire and library districts and contract with MDPD for local patrol services

02-130 Requires MAC boundaries to be within a commission district or seek approval from neighboring commissioner

04-201 Provides for the BCC approval of any municipal charter changes prior to an election

05-73 Requires new municipalities to pay 100%  mitigation on Commercial, Business, and Industrial (CBI) Areas 

05-97 Codifies requirement for new annexing municipalities to be responsible for bond indebtedness

05-98 Allows UMSA bond funds to be used in new municipalities

05-112 Requires annexation applications to provide information related to terminals

05-140 Requires approval of 25%  of resident electors for incorporation or to create a MAC

05-141 Codifies areas of countywide significance

05-142 Codifies mitigation for annexing municipalities

R-130-05 Requires independent budget analysis of proposed municipalities



10

Five new municipalities have incorporated since 
the moratorium was lifted:

Miami Lakes, 2000
Palmetto Bay, 2002
Doral, 2003
Miami Gardens, 2003 
Cutler Bay, 2005

Incorporation 2000 – Today



11

Recent BCC Actions 

On September 8, 2005, the BCC adopted Resolution 1051-05 
requesting a report detailing the impacts of incorporation and 
annexation since 2000. 
On November 13, 2005, the BCC adopted Ordinance 05-192 
directing that incorporations and annexations neither be considered 
nor processed until this report was presented and accepted by the 
BCC on May 8, 2007. 
On September 4, 2007, the BCC adopted Ordinance 07-120 
suspending consideration of proposed incorporations until receipt of 
the County Manager’s report on annexations.
On April 3, 2012, the BCC adopted Ordinance 12-24 lifting the 
incorporation moratorium.



12

Non-Revenue Neutral Municipalities

Three out of the five municipalities that have 
incorporated since 2000 were non-revenue 
neutral areas at the time the Board set an 
election among the registered voters seeking 
incorporation:

Miami Lakes
Palmetto Bay
Doral 



13

Non-Revenue Neutral Municipalities

As a condition of incorporation, these 
municipalities agreed to pay a portion of their ad 
valorem revenues to offset the revenue loss to 
the unincorporated area as a result of their 
incorporation.
The amount charged to the municipalities was 
based on a portion of difference between the 
revenues and expenses attributable to that area, 
the figures were based on an analysis done 
approximately two years prior to the time of 
incorporation.



14

Mitigation

The County has phased out the mitigation 
payments from all of the municipalities at this 
time.  The municipalities paid into the MSTF for 
a total of seven years.



15

Prior Miami-Dade County 
Incorporation Attempts

In November 1997, the BCC considered an 
intent resolution to incorporate or annex the 
remaining unincorporated area by December of 
2007 – no action was taken.
In April 2002, another intent resolution was 
considered by the BCC to incorporate or annex 
the unincorporated area by January 2018 – this 
resolution failed by a 5-6 vote.



16

Miami-Dade County

Incorporation and annexation efforts must 
be methodical.
Each incorporation/annexation proposal is 
unique, and consideration must be given 
to  the advantages and disadvantages 
associated with each. 



17

Miami-Dade County

Miami-Dade County has an obligation to the well being 
of the community, uncontrolled incorporation and 
annexation can lead to higher service costs to the 
taxpayer and general confusion regarding service area 
boundaries. 
The cost of municipal type services to the 
unincorporated residents has remained relatively low 
compared to municipalities in the County.
Several large incorporation efforts within the 
unincorporated area have discontinued their efforts for 
lack of community support. (East Kendall MAC, West 
Kendall MAC, Northwest MAC)



18

Regional Type Services

Fire Rescue Services
Local Patrol Services
Specialized Police Services



19

The Charter Review Task Force issued its recommendations to the BCC 
on January 29, 2008.  Issue 5 was the Study of Municipalities and 
Unincorporated Municipal Service Area (UMSA) Services (Creating 
and Abolishing Municipalities, Separation of Powers or 
Responsibilities between the County and Municipalities, and 
Annexation or Incorporation in Effort to Eliminate UMSA).  The Task 
Force recommended that the County Commission appoint an 
independent task force to prepare and submit a comprehensive plan 
for countywide incorporation, accomplished through annexation 
and/or incorporation, subject to amendments or changes by two-
thirds vote of the County Commission, and that such plan be placed 
on the ballot for all citizens to vote on at a general election.  This 
recommendation was not accepted by the Board. 

2007 Charter Review Task Force



9

8

12

7
11

9

4

1

2

56

3

10

13

MIAMI

HIALEAH

DORAL

HOMESTEAD

MIAMI GARDENS

CORAL GABLES

CUTLER BAY

PINECREST

MEDLEY

NORTH MIAMI

PALMETTO BAY

MIAMI LAKES

FLORIDA CITY

OPA-LOCKA

MIAMI SHORES

MIAMI BEACH

ISLANDIA

AVENTURA

NORTH MIAMI BEACH

HIALEAH GARDENS

MIAMI SPRINGS

SWEETWATER

SOUTH MIAMI

KEY BISCAYNE

SURFSIDE

WEST MIAMI

SUNNY ISLES BEACH

BISCAYNE PARK

EL PORTAL

BAL HARBOUR

GOLDEN BEACH

INDIAN CREEK VILLAGE

BAY HARBOR ISLANDS

VIRGINIA GARDENS

NORTH BAY VILLAGE

UV997

UV924

UV874

UV826

UV856UV817

UV9

UV112 UV907

UVA1A

UV953

UV826

UVA1A

§̈¦75

§̈¦195

§̈¦95

§̈¦395

£¤41

£¤1

£¤27 £¤441

£¤41

£¤1

³T

³T

M I A M I - D A D E   C O U N T Y

µ

This map was prepared by the Miami Dade County
Enterprise Technology Services Department

Geographic Information Systems (GIS) Division
March, 2012

This map and associated information is to be used only for public 
business as may be authorized by law and no reproduction for 
commercial use or sale is permitted. No expressed or implied 

warranties including but not limited to the implied warranties of 
merchantability or fitness for a particular purpose is made. User is 

warned the materials contained herein are provided "as is".

0.9 0 0.90.45 Miles

Legend
Commission District Boundary
Municipality
Completed MAC
Active MAC
Dissolved MAC
Denied FRAC
Proposed Annexation
2005 Urban Development Boundary
Highway
Major Road

NORTHWEST MAC

NORTH EAST MAC

BISCAYNE GARDENS MAC

NORTH CENTRAL MAC

FISHER ISLAND MAC

FONTAINEBLEAU MAC

FALLS MAC

EAST KENDALL MAC
WEST KENDALL MAC

GOULDS MAC

REDLANDS MAC

REDLANDS EDGE MAC

PLANT MAC

Current Municipalities, Municipal Advisory Committees and Proposed Annexations

Doral AnnexationDoral Annexation

Medley AnnexationMedley AnnexationMedley Annexation

Miami Springs 
Annexation

Virginia Gardens
Annexation

Florida City
Annexation





Issue	&	Number	of	Members	Interested	(as	of	May	15)
Salary (4)
Incorporation (3)
Term Limits (2)
Board Composition (2)
Annexation (2)
Procurement (2)
Outside Employment (1)
Ethics (1)
Jackson Governance (1)
UDB (1)
Section 1.07, Vacancies (1)
Section 2.02, Responsibilities of the Mayor (1)
Section 5.01, Departments (1)
Section 5.03, Financial Administration (1)
Section 5.04, Assessment and Collection of Taxes (1)
Section 5.05, Personnel (1)
Section 5.07, Department of Planning (1)
Section 5.08, Boards (1)
Section 6.03, Municipal Charters (1)
Section 7.02, Restrictions and Exceptions (1)
Section 8.02, Recall (1)
Section 9.01 , Abolition of Certain Office and Transfer of Functions (1)
Section 9.10 , Commission Auditor (1)













Resolution No. R-254-12





R-254-12





nay

nay

nay
nay

nay

aye
aye

aye
aye
aye

aye
aye

aye





















    
    
HJR 349  2012 

 

 

 
CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions. 

hjr0349-00 

Page 1 of 4 

F L O R I D A  H O U S E  O F  R E P R E S E N T A T I V E S 
 

House Joint Resolution 1 

A joint resolution proposing an amendment to Section 6 2 

of Article VIII of the State Constitution to authorize 3 

amendments or revisions to the home rule charter of 4 

Miami-Dade County by special law approved by a vote of 5 

the electors; providing requirements for a bill 6 

proposing such a special law. 7 

 8 

Be It Resolved by the Legislature of the State of Florida: 9 

 10 

 That the following amendment to Section 6 of Article VIII 11 

of the State Constitution is agreed to and shall be submitted to 12 

the electors of this state for approval or rejection at the next 13 

general election or at an earlier special election specifically 14 

authorized by law for that purpose: 15 

ARTICLE VIII 16 

LOCAL GOVERNMENT 17 

 SECTION 6.  Schedule to Article VIII.— 18 

 (a)  This article shall replace all of Article VIII of the 19 

Constitution of 1885, as amended, except those sections 20 

expressly retained and made a part of this article by reference. 21 

 (b)  COUNTIES; COUNTY SEATS; MUNICIPALITIES; DISTRICTS.  22 

The status of the following items as they exist on the date this 23 

article becomes effective is recognized and shall be continued 24 

until changed in accordance with law: the counties of the state; 25 

their status with respect to the legality of the sale of 26 

intoxicating liquors, wines and beers; the method of selection 27 

of county officers; the performance of municipal functions by 28 



    
    
HJR 349  2012 

 

 

 
CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions. 

hjr0349-00 

Page 2 of 4 

F L O R I D A  H O U S E  O F  R E P R E S E N T A T I V E S 
 

county officers; the county seats; and the municipalities and 29 

special districts of the state, their powers, jurisdiction and 30 

government. 31 

 (c)  OFFICERS TO CONTINUE IN OFFICE.  Every person holding 32 

office when this article becomes effective shall continue in 33 

office for the remainder of the term if that office is not 34 

abolished. If the office is abolished the incumbent shall be 35 

paid adequate compensation, to be fixed by law, for the loss of 36 

emoluments for the remainder of the term. 37 

 (d)  ORDINANCES.  Local laws relating only to 38 

unincorporated areas of a county on the effective date of this 39 

article may be amended or repealed by county ordinance. 40 

 (e)  CONSOLIDATION AND HOME RULE.  Article VIII, Sections 41 

9, 10, 11 and 24, of the Constitution of 1885, as amended, shall 42 

remain in full force and effect as to each county affected, as 43 

if this article had not been adopted, until that county shall 44 

expressly adopt a charter or home rule plan pursuant to this 45 

article. All provisions of the Miami-Dade Metropolitan Dade 46 

County Home Rule Charter, heretofore or hereafter adopted by the 47 

electors of Miami-Dade Dade County pursuant to Article VIII, 48 

Section 11, of the Constitution of 1885, as amended, shall be 49 

valid, and any amendments to such charter shall be valid; 50 

provided that the said provisions of such charter and the said 51 

amendments thereto are authorized under said Article VIII, 52 

Section 11, of the Constitution of 1885, as amended. However, 53 

notwithstanding any provision of Article VIII, Section 11, of 54 

the Constitution of 1885, as amended, or any limitations under 55 

this subsection, the Miami-Dade County Home Rule Charter may be 56 



    
    
HJR 349  2012 

 

 

 
CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions. 

hjr0349-00 

Page 3 of 4 

F L O R I D A  H O U S E  O F  R E P R E S E N T A T I V E S 
 

amended or revised by special law approved by the electors of 57 

Miami-Dade County and, if approved, shall be deemed an amendment 58 

or revision of the charter by the electors of Miami-Dade County. 59 

A bill proposing such a special law must be approved at a 60 

meeting of the local legislative delegation and filed by a 61 

member of that delegation. 62 

 (f)  DADE COUNTY; POWERS CONFERRED UPON MUNICIPALITIES.  To 63 

the extent not inconsistent with the powers of existing 64 

municipalities or general law, the Metropolitan Government of 65 

Miami-Dade Dade County may exercise all the powers conferred now 66 

or hereafter by general law upon municipalities. 67 

 (g)  DELETION OF OBSOLETE SCHEDULE ITEMS.  The legislature 68 

shall have power, by joint resolution, to delete from this 69 

article any subsection of this Section 6, including this 70 

subsection, when all events to which the subsection to be 71 

deleted is or could become applicable have occurred. A 72 

legislative determination of fact made as a basis for 73 

application of this subsection shall be subject to judicial 74 

review. 75 

 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the following statement be 76 

placed on the ballot: 77 

CONSTITUTIONAL AMENDMENT 78 

ARTICLE VIII, SECTION 6 79 

 AUTHORIZING AMENDMENTS TO MIAMI-DADE COUNTY HOME RULE 80 

CHARTER BY SPECIAL LAW APPROVED BY REFERENDUM.—Authorizes 81 

amendments or revisions to the Miami-Dade County Home Rule 82 

Charter by a special law when the law is approved by a vote of 83 

the electors of Miami-Dade County. A bill proposing such a 84 



    
    
HJR 349  2012 

 

 

 
CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions. 

hjr0349-00 

Page 4 of 4 

F L O R I D A  H O U S E  O F  R E P R E S E N T A T I V E S 
 

special law must be approved at a meeting of the local 85 

legislative delegation and filed by a member of that delegation. 86 

It also conforms references in the State Constitution to reflect 87 

the county's current name. 88 



From: webmaster@miamidade.gov [mailto:webmaster@miamidade.gov]  
Sent: Monday, April 30, 2012 12:35 PM 
To: 311 
Subject: Information Request - Miami-Dade Webmaster Inquiry #4302012123514P - rec:  
 
Contact Information 
Name: MARVA LIGHTBOURNE 
E-mail: randydavisinc@aol.com 
 
Details 
Reason for e-mail: Information Request 
 
Web URL: 
http://www.miamidade.gov/info/contact.asp 
 
 
 
 
Subject: charter meetings 
 
Comments: 

..notice the meetings places...& I notice none for the overtown, little haiti, liberty city, 
brownsville area... what's with that???.. we have the caleb center & haiti cultural arts center 
available for >> THE PEOPLE !!!..you are including us in these details (.. VERY IMPORTANT 
DETAILS TOO, IN THIS CHARTER REFORMS .. )..MS.MARVA LIGHTBOURNE, R.N., 
CHAIRWOMEN CONCERNED CITIZENS COMMITTEE, INC. LIBERTY CITY 

 
 
 
Timestamp:4/30/2012 12:35:14 PM 
 



1

Kim, Inson  (Office of the Mayor)

From: Charter - Miami-Dade
Sent: Monday, May 07, 2012 3:14 PM
To: Kim, Inson  (Office of the Mayor); Mejia, Lorna (Office of the Mayor)
Subject: FW: Charter Review Suggestions

 
 
From: webmaster@miamidade.gov [mailto:webmaster@miamidade.gov]  
Sent: Monday, May 07, 2012 10:42 AM 
To: Charter - Miami-Dade 
Subject: Charter Review Suggestions 
 

Contact Person: Santiago Leon 

E-mail: sleon@accbrokers.com 

Contact Phone Number: 3056667361 

Home Address: 11600 SW 69 AVE. 

City: Pinecrest 

State: FL 

Zip Code: 33156 

Suggestions: 1. Suggestion for voting in single-member districts I would suggest that the Commission look into 
preference voting, also called instant runoff voting. It is in force in San Francisco and a number of other cities. 
The current list includes: San Francisco, California; Oakland, California; Berkeley, California; San Leandro, 
California; Takoma Park, Maryland; Aspen, Colorado; Minneapolis, Minnesota; Telluride, Colorado; St. Paul, 
Minnesota; Portland, Maine and Hendersonville, North Carolina. There is a full explanation here: 
http://www.fairvote.org/what-is-irv/#.T4dF0KuXSa8 There is a diagram explaining the system on the web site. 
Here is a summary from the web site: Instant runoff voting allows voters to rank candidates in order of 
preference (i.e. first, second, third, fourth and so on). Voters have the option to rank as many or as few 
candidates as they wish, but can vote without fear that ranking less favored candidates will harm the chances of 
their most preferred candidates. First choices are then tabulated, and if a candidate receives a majority of first 
choices, he or she is elected. If nobody has a clear majority of votes on the first count, a series of runoffs are 
simulated, using voters' preferences as indicated on their ballot. The candidate who receives the fewest first 
place choices is eliminated. All ballots are then retabulated, with each ballot counting as one vote for each 
voter's highest ranked candidate who has not been eliminated. Specifically, voters who chose the now-eliminated 
candidate will now have their ballots added to the totals of their second ranked candidate -- just as if they were 
voting in a traditional two-round runoff election -- but all other voters get to continue supporting their top 
candidate who remains in the race. The weakest candidates are successively eliminated and their voters' ballots 
are added to the totals of their next choices until a candidate earns a majority of votes. 2. Suggestion for election 
for some or all seats on the Board of County Commissioners: Choice Voting Here is a link to a discussion of 
choice voting: http://www.fairvote.org/what-is-choice-voting#.T6fbXuuXSa8 Choice voting is a proportional 
voting system where voters rank candidates in multi-seat constituencies. Through choice voting, like-minded 
groupings of voters win legislative seats in better proportion to their share of the population. Whereas winner-
take-all elections award 100% of power to a 50.1% majority, proportional voting allows voters in a minority to win 
a fair share of representation. In Miami-Dade County, choice voting probably have resulted in the election of a 
Haitian commissioner much sooner, because even though Haitians were not a majority in any one district, there 
would have been enough Haitians to elect a commissioner on a county-wide basis. It could also result in the 
election, for example, of a Colombian commissioner, a libertarian commissioner or a commissioner running on 



2

an environmental platform. Choice Voting is used for elections all around the world and has a history of use in 
the United States. Cities such as New York and Cincinnati have used it for decades while Cambridge continues to 
employ it for City Council elections. Choice voting is also frequently used to elect board members in private 
organizations and corporations. On many campuses, choice voting has been adopted to elect student 
governments that are reflective of the student body. Under a choice voting system, voters simply rank 
candidates in order of preference, putting a "1" by their first choice a "2" by their second choice and so on. 
Voters can rank as few or as many candidates as they wish knowing that a lower choice will never count against 
the chances of a higher choice. To win under choice voting, candidates need an exact number of votes called a 
threshold". For example in a ten-seat legislature candidates need roughly 10% of votes to win and the threshold 
would be approximately 10% of the total number of votes cast. After counting first choices candidates with the 
winning threshold are elected. To maximize the number of voters who help elect someone "surplus" ballots 
beyond the threshold are transferred to remaining candidates according to voters' next-choice preferences. After 
transferring surplus ballots until no remaining candidate has obtained the winning threshold the candidate with 
the fewest votes is eliminated. All of his/her ballots are distributed among remaining candidates according to 
voters' next-choice preferences. This process continues until all seats are filled. I would be glad to meet with 
members of the Task Force to discuss these ideas.  






	Meeting Agenda - CRTF Meeting     May 17, 2012
	Meeting Minutes
	CRTF Meeting Minutes -            April 19, 2012
	CRTF Public Hearing Meeting Minutes - May 7, 2012
	CRTF Public Hearing Meeting Minutes - May 8, 2012
	CRTF Public Hearing Meeting Minutes - May 9, 2012
	CRTF Public Hearing Meeting Minutes - May 10, 2012
	CRTF Public Hearing Meeting Minutes - May 14, 2012

	Chairman's Items
	Proposed Time Line

	Staff Reports / Presentations (Follow-up CRTF requests and other business) 
	Procurement Presentation by the Internal Services Department 
	Incorporation Presentation by the Office of Management and Budget
	Map 
	2011 Adopted Millage Rates 

	Issues of Study Tally (as of May 15th)
	Requested Information - Independent Review Panel 
	Resolution No.       R-254-12 
	Proposed Resolution - Commissioner Moss
	HJR 349 - Rep. Carlos Lopez-Cantera
	Feedback Received through website and email for the period between April 30 - May 15, 2012




